# The City of Lee's Summit

# **Final Agenda**

# Legislative and Intergovernmental Relations Committee

Monday, September 21, 2020 5:30 PM Via Video Conference

Notice is hereby given that the Legislative and Intergovernmental Relations Committee e of the City of Lee's Summit will meet in regular session on Monday, September 21, 2020 at 5:30 pm by video conference as provided by Section 610.015 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri. Due to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, public attendance in a meeting room at City Hall is not being provided, and therefore the public is invited to attend the meeting by one of these methods:

• By viewing the meeting on the City website at www.WatchLS.net, and various cable providers (Spectrum channel 2, Google TV channel 143, AT&T U-Verse channel 99 and Comcast channel 7) for those whose cable providers carry the City of Lee's Summit meetings.

• By sending a request to the City Clerk at clerk@cityofls.net to attend the meeting on the Zoom platform. The City Clerk will provide instructions regarding how to attend by this method.

Persons wishing to comment on any item of business on the agenda may do so in writing prior to 12:00 p.m. on Monday, September 21, 2020, by one of the following methods:

- By sending an e-mail to clerk@cityofls.net,
- By leaving a voicemail at 816-969-1005 or

• By leaving written printed comments in the utility payments drop boxes located in the alley behind City Hall or inside the foyer at the north end of City Hall, both located at 220 SE Green Street, Lee's Summit, MO 64063.

Written comments submitted by these methods will be presented at the Legislative and Intergovernmental Relations Committee meeting.

In the event that the meeting cannot be broadcast via www.WatchLS.net and the cable channels noted above, this agenda will be amended to include directions for the public to attend via the Zoom software platform at www.Zoom.com; such amendment will include a specific link to attend the Legislative and Intergovernmental Relations Committee meeting.

# 1. Call to Order

- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Approval of Agenda
- 4. Public Comments
- 5. Business
  - A. <u>2020-3686</u> Approval of the Action Letter for the August 24, 2020 Legislative Intergovernmental Relations Committee meeting.
  - B. 2020-3628 Draft RFP for Lobby Services
  - C. <u>2020-3630</u> Legislative Priorities

#### 6. Roundtable

#### 7. Adjournment

For your convenience, City Council agendas, as well as videos of City Council and Council Committee meetings, may be viewed on the City's Legislative Information Center website at "Ismo.legistar.com"

# **Packet Information**

# File #: 2020-3686, Version: 1

Approval of the Action Letter for the August 24, 2020 Legislative Intergovernmental Relations Committee meeting.



# The City of Lee's Summit

# **Action Letter - Draft**

# Legislative and Intergovernmental Relations Committee

Monday, August 24, 2020 5:30 PM Via Video Conference

Notice is hereby given that the Legislative and Intergovernmental Relations Committee will meet on Monday, August 24, 2020 at 5:30pm via video conference as provided by Section 610.015 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri. Due to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic the meeting will not be held in-person at City Hall, and therefore the public is invited to participate in the meeting with live audio and video via the Zoom software platform. Persons wishing to provide public comment on any item of business on the agenda may do so in writing prior to 5:00 pm on August 21, 2020 either by email to: clerk@cityofls.net, by leaving a voicemail at 816-969-1005 or by leaving written printed comments in the utility payment drop boxes located in the alley behind City Hall or inside the foyer at the north end of City Hall, both located at 220 SE Green Street, Lee's Summit, MO 64063. Comments submitted by these methods will be presented in writing to the commission members and included in the minutes/action letter of the meeting. The public can attend the meeting by requesting the Zoom link / telephone number from the City Clerk at the email address listed above.

#### 1. Call to Order

- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Approval of Agenda

Councilmember Johnson made a motion to approve the Agenda. Motion was seconded by Councilmember DeMoro. Vote: 4-0-1

#### 4. Public Comments

There were no members of the public present at the meeting.

#### 5. Items for Discussion

A. <u>2020-3628</u> Draft RFP for Lobby Services

Brian Head, City Attorney explained the draft RFP for lobby services and started the discussion with item number 2. Scope of Services to the Committee.

#### General discussion revolved around:

1. The importance of our relationship with the lobbyist hired and their current relationship with the Legislators

- 2. Possibly raising the budget if desiring more services.
- 3. Keeping the contract term at three years.

Consensus was to have staff add the following items to the RFP and bring an updated version to the meeting in September:

1. Add language regarding:

a. The lobbyist conferring with the elected officials in preparation to testify on our behalf.

b. Having additional face to face time with the lobbyist. (possibly by Zoom).c. Adding a question for the candidate to describe the types of relationships they currently have with legislators and their philosophy.

#### B. 2020-3630 Legislative Priorities

Brian Head started the discussion and informed the Committee that he had been in contact with our current lobbyist. He mentioned that he asked Mr. Durham for his thoughts on issues that might be coming up.

Mr. Durham provided the following:

- 1. Wayfair
- 2. Franchise Fees
- 3. Special District taxing authority
- 4. Policing practice, employment, training
- 5. Prosecutorial Authority
- 6. Economic Development Programs and credits

7. Limitations on Authorities regarding zoning, building codes and business licenses

8. Local government expenditure database of expenses in real time.

After brief discussion, Mr. Head offered to send out a clean copy of last year's priorities in a separate email to the Committee so they may begin making changes to it for further discussion at the next meeting.

#### 6. Roundtable

The next Legislative Intergovernmental Committee meeting will be held on Monday, Sept 21, 2020 at 5:30 p.m.

#### 7. Adjournment

#### Councilmember Carlyle adjourned the meeting at 6:23 p.m.

For your convenience, City Council agendas, as well as videos of City Council and Council Committee meetings, may be viewed on the City's Legislative Information Center website at "Ismo.legistar.com"

# **Packet Information**

# File #: 2020-3628, Version: 1

# Draft RFP for Lobby Services

The City engages a lobbyist or lobbying firm to assist in tracking legislation at the State Capital and hopefully to influence the direction of legislation impacting municipalities. Typically we engage a lobbyist for 1 year with two automatic renewals (see attached previous contract). The last time we bid this service was in 2017. It is time to issue a new RFP for the service and select a lobbyist or firm for the upcoming legislative session.

Attached is a draft RFP in anticipation of future Legislative and Intergovernmental Relations meetings for your review and consideration regarding various provisions of the document. It is lengthy but consists primarily of instructions, a draft agreement, and scoring sheets etc. I would direct your attention to sections: Scope of services on page 4 and the term of agreement on page 9. We will also need to discuss whether or not you want to do interviews.

UPDATE for 9-21-20 meeting: At the last meeting of the Committee, staff was instructed to include a statement requesting information related to relationships with legislators. That statement has been added to the RFP in the packet and the packet has been update.

# CITY OF LEE'S SUMMIT PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 220 S.E. GREEN STREET LEE'S SUMMIT, MO 64063 Phone: 816-969-1087 <u>deedee.tschirhart@cityofls.net</u>

#### **TITLE-SIGNATURE PAGE**

#### **REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 2021-008**

The City of Lee's Summit will accept electronically submitted proposals through Public Purchase from qualified persons or firms interested in providing the following:

# LEGISLATIVE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ATTACHED SCOPE OF SERVICES

# PROPOSALS MUST BE UPLOADED INTO PUBLIC PURCHASE E-BIDDING SYSTEM PRIOR TO THE CLOSING DATE OF [INSERT DATE]A.M./P.M. LOCAL TIME

It is the responsibility of interested firms to check the City's e-bidding system, Public Purchase for any addendums prior to the closing date and time of this Proposal. All addendums must be signed and included with submitted proposal.

The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive technical defects, and to select the proposal(s) deemed most advantageous to the City.

The undersigned certifies that he/she has the authority to bind this company in an agreement to supply the service or commodity in accordance with all terms and conditions specified herein. Please type or print the information below.

#### Respondent is REQUIRED to complete, sign and return this form with their submittal.

Company Name		Authorized Perso	on (Print)
Address		Signature	
City/State/Zip		Title	
Telephone #	Fax #	Date	Tax ID #
E-mail		Entity Type	

#### CITY OF LEES SUMMIT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 2021-008

The City of Lee's Summit will accept electronically submitted proposals from firms/providers interested in providing the following: Legislative and Intergovernmental Services. Proposals must be received by 3:00 P.M. Local time, on [INSERT DATE].

RFP documents and any addendums are available by accessing the City's e-bidding system, Public Purchase at or by contacting the Procurement Officer listed on page 1. Proposers needing to register with Public Purchase click here: <a href="https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/leessummit,mo/buyer/public/homeOpenBids">https://www.publicpurchase.com/gems/leessummit,mo/buyer/public/homeOpenBids</a>. This is a two-step process. Proposers should plan on registering no later than 36 hours (M-F) prior to RFP closing. The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to waive technical defects and to select the proposal(s) deemed most advantageous to the City. All addendums must be signed and included with proposal.

For any service agreement greater than \$5,000, the successful proposer shall comply with § 285.530, RSMo, as amended, and (1) provide by sworn affidavit affirmation that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien and (2) provide documentation affirming its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with this agreement. The required documentation affirming enrollment must be from the federal work authorization program provider. Letter from respondent reciting compliance is not sufficient. All proposals should include the signed and notarized Work Authorization Affidavit and the electronic signature page from the E-Verify program.

DeeDee Tschirhart, Senior Procurement Officer

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Cover Title-Signature Page Legal Notice Table of Contents

#### PART I

Description of Project and Services Required

- 1.0 Introduction
- 2.0 Scope of Services
- 3.0 Experience Requirements
- 4.0 Timeline for RFP Process and Project Completion

#### PART II

Instructions to Respondents

- 1.0 Minimum Qualifications
- 2.0 Selection Process
- 3.0 Respondent Cost to Develop Proposal
- 4.0 Instructions for Responding to this RFP
- 5.0 Terms and Conditions
- 6.0 No Financial Interest or Other Conflict
- 7.0 Debarment and Suspension Status
- 8.0 Invoicing and Payments
- 9.0 Cooperative Procurement with other Jurisdictions
- 10.0 Business License
- 11.0 Insurance
- 12.0 Compliance
- 13.0 Renewal Option
- 14.0 Work Authorization Affidavit and E-Verify
- Enclosure I, Proposal Ranking Score Sheet
- Enclosure II, Interview Ranking Score Sheet
- Enclosure III, Table of Contents for submittal
- Form No. 1: Provider Profile
- Form No. 2: Key Outside Consultants
- Form No. 3: Experience/References
- Form No. 4: Resumes of Key Personnel
- Form No. 5: Project Narrative
- Form No. 6A: Task/Personnel Breakdown
- Form No. 6B: Fee Schedule
- Form No. 6C: Service Related Direct Expenses
- Form No. 6D: Total Cost

PART III

Sample Agreement

# 

### DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT AND SERVICES REQUIRED

# 1.0 INTRODUCTION/DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT/SERVICES:

The City of Lee's Summit, Missouri (the "City") is seeking an experienced firm (may be referred to as "Firm" or "Proposer" or "Offeror" or "Contractor"), to provide lobbying and legislative representation services that promote the City's interests before the Missouri General Assembly and other State of Missouri governmental bodies. The City desires to enter into a professional services contract with a qualified individual or firm who can demonstrate competency and experience in providing State lobbying services for municipal governments.

In carrying out these services, the Firm will assist the City with representation, information gathering, information dissemination, strategic advice, and support services. The Firm will provide a flexible level of support, depending on the depth or scope of the City's legislative priorities at any given time. The services needed will focus on: 1) garnering support for the City's State of Missouri legislative agenda; 2) identifying, tracking, and responding to legislation that impacts Lee's Summit; and 3) securing various State of Missouri funding.

# 2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES:

- 2.1 State Lobbying Services General Requirements:
  - The general scope of work consists of the Firm performing all of the following services:
  - a. Provide a broad range of State lobbying services on behalf of the City before the Legislative and Executive branches of the Missouri State Government.
  - b. Assist in the formulation of a State policy agenda, working with the Mayor and Council and designated City department heads.
  - c. Represent the City's interests in the State budget process as well as identify, solicit, and lobby for Capital Bond Bills and grants.
  - d. Review and analyze on a continuing basis, all existing and proposed State of Missouri policies, programs, and legislation; identify issues that may impact the City; and provide prompt notification of issues to the City.
  - e. Based on policy direction provided by the City, develop and implement strategies to advance the City's legislative goals.
  - f. In areas such as the environment and transportation, where State and Federal policy overlap, coordinate and collaborate with the City's contracted Federal lobbyist, as necessary.
  - g. Files such reports with the Missouri Ethics Commission as may be required by the ethics laws of the State of Missouri including, but not limited to, the Principal's Report.

#### 2.2 Communications:

- a. Throughout the year and on a real time basis, inform the City of developments coming out of the Legislative and Executive branches of the State Government that impact Lee's Summit.
- b. Be available in a timely manner in person, by telephone, or email to provide consultation and advice to the Mayor, members of the City Council Legislative and Intergovernmental Committee and staff.
- c. In response to City direction, act quickly on the City's behalf to rapidly changing developments in the State Government with impact on policy and legislative matters.
- d. Represent the City on a year round basis, at Task Force/Work Group meetings, bill hearings, Committee meetings, and provide timely written notices and summaries to City staff.
- e. Provide periodic, timely written reports that track the status of the City's legislative priorities and other legislation of interest on a weekly basis during the Legislative Session, and no less than quarterly at other times of the year, delineating the Firm's activities and actions for the City.
- f. Provide two in-person reports to the City Council, at least one to occur during the legislative session and remote meetings as necessary to discuss legislative priorities and issues of immediate concern.
- g. Work with City staff to prepare written communications that convey the City's position on State legislative, policy, and intergovernmental issues.
- h. Assist with the logistics related to City officials testifying at bill hearings.

#### 3.0 EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS

- a. Consultant must have strong and reliable relationships with legislators and demonstrate a history of cultivating successful relationship with new and existing legislators
- b. Proposals should contain a history of the firm generally and specific information regarding the primary Consultant along with a summary of similar work for other governmental entities.
- c. The Consultant must provide a listing of current and former clients for the last five (5) years for conflict examination.
- d. The Consultant shall provide proof of appropriate lobbyist registration under applicable Missouri Law, and shall maintain the same during the Contract period.

#### 4.0 TIMELINE FOR RFP PROCESS:

The timeline listed below is the City's estimation of time required to complete the RFP process. All efforts shall be made to abide by this schedule but it may change due to different circumstances.

Post RFP Notification Question Cutoff date Receive Proposals electronically in Public Purchase Meet to review Interviews City Council Notice to Proceed [INSERT DATE] [INSERT DATE], Local Time, [INSERT DATE]@ 3:00 P.M., Local Time [INSERT DATE] week of [INSERT DATE] [INSERT DATE] [INSERT DATE]

#### PART II INSTRUCTIONS TO RESPONDENTS

#### 1.0 MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS/PROPOSAL INFORMATION

- 1.1 Describe you relationships with legislators and your approach to cultivating successful relationship with new and existing legislators"
- 1.2 Proposals should contain a history of the firm generally and specific information regarding the primary Consultant along with a summary of similar work for other governmental entities.
- 1.3 The Consultant must provide a listing of current and former clients for the last five (5) years for conflict examination.
- 1.4 The Consultant shall provide proof of appropriate lobbyist registration under applicable Missouri Law, and shall maintain the same during the Contract period.

#### 2.0 SELECTION PROCESS:

The proposals will be evaluated by a Selection Committee comprised of selected City personnel. The overall process may consist of two steps: the first being a review and evaluation of all responsive proposals and the second being the interview phase for the short list of respondents selected for interview.

#### Step One: Evaluation of Responsive Proposals

Members of the Selection Committee will review and rate each responsive proposal based on the criteria identified in Enclosure I of this document.

The Proposal Ranking Score Sheet for the evaluation of the proposals is included as Enclosure I of this document. The Evaluation Committee may request additional submittals. Scores identified on the Proposal Ranking Score Sheets submitted by the Evaluation Committee will be utilized to create a Composite Proposal Score Sheet.

The Project Manager and Evaluation Committee may determine via the outcome of the evaluation of the proposal(s) that there is only one firm identified as the highest ranking firm based on overall composite score results. If it is determined by the Project Manager and Evaluation Committee that there is not a need to interview, the City may negotiate the specific terms of the agreement including cost without engaging in an interview process.

The Project Manager checks references and prepares a reference check information memo that is distributed to the Evaluation Committee. Reference check information may be taken into consideration as part of the evaluation of responsive proposals process as it pertains to the firm's Experiences & References criteria.

#### Step Two: Short List Interviews

The Proposal Evaluation Composite Score Sheet, based on the evaluation of responsive proposals, will produce a list of the top rated proposals that may be selected for interviews (short list) if determined to be necessary by the Project Manager and Evaluation Committee. Oral interviews may be conducted in order to make a final determination of the top ranking firm if the City determines interviews are necessary.

The Interview Ranking Score Sheet for the evaluation of interviews is included as Enclosure II of this document. Scores identified on the Interview Ranking Score Sheets submitted by the Evaluation Committee will be utilized if applicable to create a Composite Interview Score Sheet.

The Project Manager checks reference(s) once a short list is determined. A reference check information memo is prepared by the Project Manager and distributed to the interviewing committee. Reference check information may be considered part of the interview process and is taken into consideration pertaining to the firm's Experience & References criteria.

Upon selection of the top rated firm, the City may negotiate the specific terms of the agreement including cost.

#### 3.0 <u>RESPONDENT COST TO DEVELOP PROPOSAL:</u>

All costs for preparing and submitting proposals in response to this RFP are to be the responsibility of the respondent and will not be chargeable in any manner to the City.

#### 4.0 INSTRUCTIONS FOR RESPONDING TO THIS RFP:

Submittals must be uploaded into Public Purchase e-bidding system. All questions should be directed to the Procurement Officer(s) identified on page one of this document. The proposal **must** be organized using the following format:

- a. Title-Signature Page
- b. Table of Contents for submittal (Enclosure III)
- c. Letter of Transmittal for Request for Proposal
- d. Addenda (if applicable)
- e. Form No. 1 Provider Profile –Lead Firm(s) Joint Venture Partners
- f. Form No. 2 Key Outside Consultants (sub-consultants)
- g. Form No. 3 Experience/References List those projects your firm has completed within the past five (5) years that are similar to those requested by this RFP. Special attention should be given to projects your firm has completed for other governmental entities. Include company name, address, persons to agreement, telephone number, e-mail address, a brief description of the project completed by your firm, and date completed.
- h. Form No. 4 Key personnel that will be assigned to the City's project for lead consultant firm(s) and sub-consultant firms. List the person's name, title, project assignments, years of experience and any other qualifications relevant to the City's project.
- i. Form No. 5 Narrative on project approach. Describe the schedule of events necessary to complete this project clearly defining the roles of all involved parties. Outline familiarity with the project and identify critical or unique issues specific to this project. Outline a communications process and explain unique approaches used elsewhere.
- j. Cost. Identify all costs related directly or indirectly to this project, including, but not limited to employee classification, hourly rate, travel time, out-of-pocket expenses, etc. This section is to be signed by an authorized representative of the firm. The entity type and Tax ID number must also be provided.
   Form No. 6A: Task/Personnel Breakdown
   Form No. 6B: Fee Schedule
   Form No. 6C: Service Related Direct Expenses
   Form No. 6D: Total Cost
- k. Before an agreement will be entered into, the successful respondent shall furnish to the City all items stated in section 4 INSTRUCTIONS FOR RESPONDING TO THIS RFP as well as a CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE as described in Insurance Requirements PART III.

#### 5.0 TERMS and CONDITIONS:

Any Contract awarded pursuant to this request for proposal shall be subject to the terms and conditions contained in the sample agreement located in PART III. Any Proposal conditioned on conflicting terms and conditions may be rejected.

#### 6.0 NO FINANCIAL INTEREST OR OTHER CONFLICT:

By submission of its response, the bidder certifies that they are in compliance with items 6.1 through 7.4.

- 6.1 Elected or appointed officials or employees of the City of Lee's Summit or any political subdivision thereof, serving in an executive or administrative capacity, must comply with sections 105.452 and 105.454, RSMo, regarding conflict of interest.
- 6.2 The Service Provider hereby covenants that at the time of solicitation submittal the Service Provider has no other contractual relationships which would create any actual or perceived conflict of interest. The Service Provider further agrees that during the term of the contract/agreement neither the Service Provider nor any of its employees shall acquire any other contractual relationships which create such a conflict.

#### 7.0 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION STATUS:

7.1 Offeror is not currently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any government agency, nor is Offeror an agent of any person or entity that is currently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transaction by any government agency.

- 7.2 Offeror has not within a three year period preceding this Invitation been convicted of or had a civil suit judgment rendered against Offeror for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain or performing a public transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statement, or receiving stolen property.
- 7.3 Offeror is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated above.
- 7.4 Offeror has not, within a three year period preceding this Invitation, had any government (federal, state, or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

#### 8.0 INVOICING AND PAYMENTS:

Invoices shall be prepared and submitted in duplicate to the City of Lee's Summit, 220 S.E. Green Street, Lee's Summit, Missouri 64063. Invoices shall contain the following information: Agreement number, description of services, unit prices, and extended totals. Fee schedule is negotiable.

#### 9.0 COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT WITH OTHER JURISDICTIONS:

This section is optional; it will not affect proposal award. If the City of Lee's Summit awarded you the proposed agreement, would you sell under the terms of this Agreement to any Municipal, County Public Utility, Hospital, Educational Institution, or any other non-profit organization having membership in the Mid-America Council of Public Purchasing (MACPP) or the Mid America Regional Council (MARC) and located within the Greater Kansas City Metropolitan Trade Area? (All deliveries shall be F.O.B. Destination and there shall be no obligations on the part of any member of said Council to utilize this Agreement).

YES \_\_\_\_\_ NO \_\_\_\_\_ INITIALS: \_\_\_\_\_

Sales will be made in accordance with the <u>terms and conditions</u> of the Request for Proposal and any subsequent term agreement. There shall, however, be no obligation under the cooperative procurement agreement for any organization represented by MACPP or MARC to utilize the agreement unless they are specifically named in the Request for Proposal as a joint participant.

The principal contracting officer (PCO) is responsible to handle the solicitation and award the agreement. The PCO has sole authority to modify the agreement and handle disputes regarding the substance of the agreement. The PCO is the Procurement Officer of Record, City of Lee's Summit, Missouri. Each jurisdiction that is a party to the joint bid has authority to act as Administrative Contracting Officer with responsibility to issue purchase orders, inspect and receive goods, make payments and handle disputes involving shipment to the jurisdiction.

#### 10.0 LICENSES AND PERMITS:

The successful bidder shall secure and maintain all licenses imposed by law, regulation, or ordinance and pay all charges and fees, which shall include a current City of Lee's Summit, Missouri, Business License. Before issuance of a contract to the successful bidder, proof of the licenses (i.e. xerographic copy of the paid receipt or xerographic copy of the actual license) shall be provided to the Procurement and Contract Services Division or Department conducting this solicitation to be kept in the bid file as part of the permanent record. It shall be the responsibility of the successful bidder to contact the Development Center, (816) 969-1220, for information to obtain business licenses.

#### 11.0 INSURANCE:

The proposer shall comply with all of the requirements contained in the Contract (Part III of this RFP). The proposer is responsible for reviewing insurance requirements before submitting a response to this RFP.

#### 12.0 COMPLIANCE:

The following items shall be provided by proposer to the City of Lee's Summit Procurement and Contract Services Division:

12.1 To be provided with proposal submittal:

- Proposer must complete the proposal document in its entirety
- Form No. 1: Provider Profile
- Form No.2: Key Outside Consultants

- Form No. 3: Experience/References
- Form No. 4: Resumes of Key Personnel
- Form No. 5: Project Narrative
- Form No. 6A: Task/Personnel Breakdown
- Form No. 6B: Fee Schedule
- Form No. 6C: Service Related Direct Expenses
- Form No. 6D: Total Cost
- 12.2 To be provided prior to the issuance of an agreement:
  - Business License (if applicable)
  - Work Authorization Affidavit (if applicable)
  - E-Verify Signature page (if applicable)
  - Missouri Charter Number
  - Certificate of Insurance (COI) naming the City of Lee's Summit as additional insured under General Liability
  - W-9 (new vendor only)

NOTE: Respondents legal entity company name must be identified the SAME on their W9 and Certificate of Insurance (COI).

12.3 Charter Number: All vendors doing business in the State of Missouri must register with the Missouri Secretary Of State. Upon registration, a charter number is issued and should be identified on the front cover page of this solicitation. If your business is exempt, the exemption number should be referenced in lieu of a charter number. The City prefers to have this information at the time of bid submittal. If not provided at time of bid submittal, it must be provided within ten (10) business days of the date of Notice of Award. No work may commence until this is received. Failure to provide evidence of registration is grounds to revoke the notice of award and disqualify the bid. To register with the Missouri Secretary of State, please consult:

https://bsd.sos.mo.gov/BusinessEntity/BESearch.aspx?SearchType=0.

#### 13.0 TERM; RENEWAL OPTION:

- a. The Agreement shall be effective from the Effective Date, and remain in full force and effect for one year thereafter (the "Initial Term"), unless terminated as otherwise provided herein. The City reserves the right to negotiate the Agreement to automatically renew for up to [INSERT MAX YEARS OF RENEWAL] (X) successive, one-year terms.
- b. If the service provider requests an increase in compensation for any renewal period, the service provider shall notify Procurement & Contract Services or Department conducting this solicitation no less than sixty (60) days prior to the end of the agreement period.
- c. All requested increases must be accompanied by justification acceptable to the City to establish allowable renewal term pricing.
- d. Adjustments in cost shall not take effect unless agreed in writing to by both parties.

#### 14.0 WORK AUTHORIZATION AFFIDAVIT AND E-VERIFY:

Any contract for services in excess of five thousand dollars (\$5,000), the bidder or business entity, as defined in § 285.530, RSMo, shall, 1. Provide; by sworn affidavit affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien and 2. Provide documentation affirming its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with this contract. The required documentation must be from the federal work authorization program provider (e.g. the electronic signature page from the E-Verify program's Memorandum of Understanding). Letter from Consultants reciting compliance is not sufficient.

The Department of Homeland Security, U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services, (USCIS) in partnership with the Social Security Administration (SSA) operate an FREE internet-based program called E-Verify, <a href="http://www.dhs.gov/everify">http://www.dhs.gov/everify</a> that allows employers to verify the employment eligibility of their employees, regardless of citizenship. Based on information provided by employees on their Form I-9, E-Verify checks the information electronically against records contained in DHS and Social Security Administration databases. There are penalties for employing an unauthorized alien, including suspension of the Consultant's business license, termination of the contract, debarment from city and State work for a period of three years or permanently, and withholding 25% of the total amount due the Consultant.

#### **CITY OF LEE'S SUMMIT, MISSOURI**

# RFP NO. 2021-008 LEGISLATIVE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL SERVICES

WORK AUTHORIZATION AFFIDAVIT PURSUANT TO SECTION 285.530, RSMo (FOR ALL BIDS FOR SERVICES IN EXCESS OF \$5,000.00)				
Effective	1/1/2009			
County of ) ) ) ss.				
State of )				
My name is I am an authorized agent of ("Bidder"). Bidder is enrolled and participates in a federal work authorization program for all employees working in connection with services provided to the City of Lee's Summit, Missouri. Bidder does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the services being provided. Bidder shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work for the City of Lee's Summit, Missouri or enter into a contract with a subbidder that knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien.				
Affiant Printed Name				
Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of	, 20 Notary Public			
SEAL				

# ENCLOSURE I PROPOSAL RANKING SCORE SHEET

#### **SCORING RANGES**

		30 Point Questions	20 Point Questions	10 Point Questions	
Outst	anding	25 – 30	17 – 20	9-10	
Excee	eds Acceptable	19 – 24	13 – 16	7 – 8	
Accep	otable	13 - 18	9-12	5 – 6	
Marg	inal	0-12	0-8	0-4	
	Evaluation Criteria			Maximum Points	Score
1	Evidence of Experience & Referen Consider experience and referen provider experienced in providing	ces listed by the firm/provi	der on Form 3 of the RFP. Is the	30	
	<ul> <li>Familiarity and experience w</li> <li>Recent experience conductir</li> <li>Consider any sub-consultant</li> </ul>	g similar work	ence (if applicable)		
2		and background of specific p m 4 of the RFP. Also conside	personnel that shall be assigned to er the specific involvement of those ork of similar scope and size:	30	
	<ul> <li>Project Manager</li> <li>Lobbying team</li> <li>Sub-consultants (if applicable</li> </ul>	2)			
3.	Applicable Resources (FORM 1, 2, Evaluate the extent of applicable work as listed on Forms 1, 2, and	resources available to the fir	m / provider to complete the City's	10	
			procedures the firm has in place act within proposed time frame		
4.	Approach (FORM 5) Evaluate the firm/provider's appr the RFP as evidenced by the appro		of the Scope of Services required in	20	
	<ul> <li>Schedule and detailed appro</li> <li>Roles of all involved parties c</li> <li>Identify/recognize critical or</li> </ul>	learly identified			
	<ul> <li>Adequacy of proposed comr</li> <li>Unique approaches that hav</li> </ul>	nunications process			
5.	Cost (FORM 6 A, B, C, D) Determination of cost and pricing conform to the requirements of th		elements of cost and pricing	10	
Rank	ed By:			TOTAL POINTS	
				(100)	

# ENCLOSURE II INTERVIEW RANKING SCORE SHEET

# **SCORING RANGES**

	30 Point Questions	20 Point Questions	10 Point Questions	
Outstanding	25 – 30	17 - 20	9 - 10	
Exceeds Acceptable	19 – 24	13 – 16	7 – 8	
Acceptable	13 – 18	9-12	5 – 6	
Marginal	0-12	0-8	0-4	
Evaluation (	riteria		Maximum Points	Score
Consider ex	Experience & References with Similar Work (FOR perience and references listed by the firm/proverienced in providing services similar to that requerienced in providing services similar to that requeriences are also be as a service service services similar to that requeriences are also be as a service service service service service services services service services services service service service service services service	vider on Form 3 of the RFP. Is the	30	
	rity and experience with similar work			
	experience conducting similar work			
Consid	er any sub-consultants to be used and their expe	rience (if applicable)		
Consider co the City's w	Firm/Provider Personnel (FORM 4) mparable experience and background of specific ork as outlined on Form 4 of the RFP. Also consid york listed on Form 3 of the RFP. Experience on v	ler the specific involvement of those	30	
<ul> <li>Lobbiy</li> </ul>	Manager ng team nsultants (if applicable)			
Evaluate the	esources (FORM 1, 2, AND 5) extent of applicable resources available to the fi d on Forms 1, 2, and 5 of the RFP	irm / provider to complete the City's	10	
	rd Quality Assurance/Quality Control program or acy of proposed team/resources to complete pro			
	ORM 5) firm/provider's approach to and understanding videnced by the project approach presented in F		20	
	le and detailed approach is reasonable/responsiv f all involved parties clearly identified	ve to City's needs		
	/recognize critical or unique issues specific to the	e work		
	acy of proposed communications process			
•	approaches that have been successful elsewher	e.		
Determinat	6 A, B, C, D) on of cost and pricing data: Consider whether all the requirements of the RFP.	l elements of cost and pricing	10	
Ranked By:			TOTAL POINTS	

# ENCLOSURE III TABLE OF CONTENTS

The following table sets forth the specific items to be addressed in the proposal. Respondents are requested to use this page with their proposal and with the corresponding page numbers indicated on the information submitted within their proposal:

Α.	TITLE-SIGNATURE PAGE	Page 1
В.	TABLE OF CONTENTS:         Submit this page with page numbers provided.	Page 2
C.	<ul> <li>LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL:</li> <li>Limit to four (4) pages; to be submitted on the provider's letterhead.</li> <li>1. Concisely state the provider's understanding of the services required by the City.</li> <li>2. Include additional relevant information not requested elsewhere in this RFP.</li> <li>3. The signature of the letter shall be that of a person authorized to represent and bind the firm/provider.</li> </ul>	Attachment
D.	ADDENDA (if applicable) The respondent must return the correct number of all numbered addenda with submitted proposal. All Addenda must be signed.	Attachment
E.	PROVIDER PROFILE: Form 1 provided	Page 3
F.	LIST OF OUTSIDE KEY CONSULTANTS/ASSOCIATES OR AGENCIES THAT WILL BE USED FOR THE CITY'S SERVICE: Form 2 provided	Page 4
G.	EXPERIENCE/REFERENCES: Form 3 provided (Form 3 may be reproduced and attached in sequence if more space is required).	Page
Н.	RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL: Form 4 provided (Form 4 may be reproduced and attached in sequence if more space is required).	Page
١.	PROJECT APPROACH NARRATIVE: Form 5 provided (This form must be signed and dated).	Page
J.	COST: Form provided (Use any of these forms 6A, 6B, 6C or 6D)	Page

#### FORM NO. 1: PROVIDER PROFILE

- 1. Lead Service Provider/Firm(s) (or Joint Venture) Name and Address:
- 1a. Provider /Firm is: \_\_\_\_ National \_\_\_\_ Regional \_\_\_\_ Local
- 1b. Year Provider/Firm Established:

Years of Experience providing RFP identified services/project for municipalities: Year of Experience providing Legislative and Intergovernmental Services

- 1c. Licensed to do business in the State of Missouri: \_\_\_\_ Yes \_\_\_\_ No
- 1d. Principal contact information: Name, title, telephone number and email address:
- 1e. Address of office to perform work, if different from Item No. 1:
- 2. Please list the number of persons by discipline that your Firm/Joint Venture will commit to the City's project or the services to be provided:
- 3. If submittal is by Joint Venture or utilizes subcontractors, list participating firms / providers and outline specific areas of responsibility (including administrative, technical, and financial) for each firm:
- 3a. Has this Joint Venture previously worked together?
   Yes
   No

#### FORM NO. 2: KEY OUTSIDE CONSULTANTS

Each respondent must complete this form for all proposed sub-consultants.

#### SUB-CONSULTANT #1

Name & Address

Specialty/Role with this Project:

Worked with Lead Firm Before: \_\_\_\_ Yes \_\_\_\_ No Year Firm Established:

- Years of Experience providing Legislative and Intergovernmental Services
- Complete Form 4 for all key personnel assigned to this project for this sub-consultant.

SUB-CONSULTANT #2 Name & Address

Specialty / Role with this Project:

Worked with Lead Firm Before: \_\_\_\_ Yes Year Firm Established:

- Years of Experience providing Legislative and Intergovernmental Services
- Complete Form 4 for all key personnel assigned to this project for this sub-consultant.

No

SUB-CONSULTANT #3

Name & Address

Specialty / Role with this Project:

Worked with Lead Firm Before: Yes No Year Firm Established:

- Years of Experience providing Legislative and Intergovernmental Services
- Complete Form 4 for all key personnel assigned to this project for this sub-consultant.

#### FORM NO. 3: EXPERIENCE/REFERENCES

Work by Service Provider/Firm (including any subcontractors or Joint-Venture companies) that best illustrate current qualifications relevant to the City's project that has been/is being accomplished by personnel during the past five (5) years that shall be assigned to the City's project. List no more than ten (10) total projects:

Project Name & Location:

Completion Date (Actual or Estimated):

Project Owners Name & Address:

Project Owner's Contact Person, Title & Telephone Number:

Estimated Cost (in Thousands) for Entire Project: \$

Estimated Cost (in Thousands) for work performed by responsible Service Provider/Firm: \$

Scope of Entire Project: (Please give quantitative indications wherever possible).

Nature of Service Provider's/Firm's responsibility in project: (Please give quantitative indications wherever possible).

Service Provider's/Firm's Personnel (Name/Project Assignment) who worked on the stated project that shall be assigned to the City's project:

#### FORM NO. 4: RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL

Brief resume of key persons, specialists, and individual service providers that shall be assigned to the City project:

- a. Name and Title:
- b. Project Assignment:
- c. Name of Service Provider/Firm with which associated:
- d. Years Experience:
   With this service provider/firm \_\_\_\_\_ other service providers/firms \_\_\_\_
- e. Education: Degree(s)/Year/Specialization:
- f. Current Registration(s):
- g. Other Experience & Qualifications relevant to the proposed project:

# FORM NO. 5: PROJECT APPROACH NARRATIVE

Use this space to provide a detailed project approach including but not limited to:

- Project schedule and detailed approach is reasonable/responsive to City's needs
- Roles of all involved parties clearly identified
- Identify/recognize critical or unique issues specific to the project and successful critical or unique approaches used elsewhere
- Proposed communication process

Company Name		Authorized Person (Print)	
Address		Signature	
City/State/Zip		Title	
Telephone #	Fax #	Date	
Tax ID No.		Entity Type:	

# FORM NO. 6A: TASK/PERSONNEL BREAKDOWN

Task No.	Description Of Task	Personnel Classification	Estimated Hours Per	Hourly Rate	Total Cost
TUSK NO.	Description of Task	Responsible For Task	Personnel Classification	nouny nate	10101 0050
		Estimated Total Hours To	By Task		
		Complete Task			
TOTAL					

Company Name		Authorized Person (Print)		
Address		Signature		
City/State/Zip		Title		
Telephone #	Fax #	Date		

Tax ID No.

Entity Type:

# FORM NO. 6B: "FEE SCHEDULE" SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATES FOR SERVICES

PERSONNEL CLASSIFICATION

TYPICAL WORK TASKS

#### HOURLY BILLING RATES

Company Name		
Address		
City/State/Zip		
Telephone #	Fax #	
Tax ID No.		

Authorized Person (Print)

Signature

Title

Date

Entity Type:

# FORM NO. 6C: SERVICE RELATED DIRECT EXPENSES

ITEM		UNIT COST
Company Name	Authorized Person (Print)	
Address	Signature	
City/State/Zip	Title	
Telephone # Fax #	Date	
Tax ID No.	Entity Type:	

# FORM NO. 6D: TOTAL COST

Overall total project cost to include all related cost associated with the proposed project or scope of services, to include but not limited to: Personnel, total hours and service related expenses.

TOTAL C	OST \$	
	Numeric	
Use w	vords, Dollars/Cents	
Company Name		Authorized Person (Print)
Address		Signature
City/State/Zip		Title
Telephone #	Fax #	Date
Tax ID No.		Entity Type:

#### PART III <u>SAMPLE AGREEMENT</u> GOVER<u>NING RESPONSES AND SUBSEQUENT CONTRACTS</u>

### PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LEE'S SUMMIT AND

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is entered into as of the Effective Date set forth below between the City of Lee's Summit, a Missouri municipal corporation (the "City"), and [INSERT Contractor Name], a(n) [INSERT biz org type for company] (the "Contractor"). The City and the Contractor are sometimes referred to individually as the "Party" and collectively as the "Parties".

# RECITALS

A. The City issued a Request for Proposals, RFP #\_\_\_\_\_ "[INSERT title of RFP]" (the "RFP"), a copy of which is on file with the Purchasing Division and incorporated herein by reference, seeking proposals from Contractors to provide [INSERT general type of services in RFP] (the "Services").

B. The Contractor responded to the RFP by submitting a proposal (the "Proposal"), attached hereto as <u>Exhibit</u> <u>A</u> and incorporated herein by reference, and the City desires to enter into an Agreement with the Contractor for the Services.

# AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are incorporated herein by reference, the following mutual covenants and conditions, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the City and the Contractor hereby agree as follows:

# 1. Term of Agreement.

A. <u>Initial Term</u>. This Agreement shall be effective from the Effective Date, and remain in full force and effect for one year thereafter (the "Initial Term"), unless terminated as otherwise provided herein.

B. <u>Renewal Terms</u>. After the expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement may automatically renew for up to [INSERT MAX YEARS OF RENEWAL] (X) successive, one-year terms (each a "Renewal Term") if it is deemed in the best interests of the City, subject to availability and appropriation of funds for renewal in each subsequent year. The Initial Term and any Renewal Term(s) are collectively referred to herein as the "Term." Upon renewal, the terms and conditions of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

2. <u>Scope of Work</u>. Contractor shall provide the Services as set forth in the Scope of Work, attached hereto as <u>Exhibit B</u> and incorporated herein by reference.

3. <u>Compensation</u>. The City shall pay Contractor an amount not to exceed \$\_\_\_\_\_\_.00 for the Services at the rates set forth in the Fee Proposal, attached hereto as <u>Exhibit C</u> and incorporated herein by reference. The Contractor shall not commence any billable work or provide any Materials or Services under this Contract until the Contractor receives an executed purchase order from the City.

4. <u>Payments</u>. The City shall pay the Contractor [INSERT FREQUENCY], based upon work performed and completed to date, and upon submission and approval of invoices. All invoices shall document and itemize all work completed to date, and shall include the Purchase Order number authorizing the transaction, if applicable,

and shall be delivered to the City Accounts Payable address indicated on the face of the Purchase Order or email to ap@cityofls.net, unless otherwise specified. Each invoice statement shall include a record of time expended and work performed in sufficient detail to justify payment. All transportation charges must be prepaid by the Contractor. If invoice is subject to a quick payment discount, the discount period will be calculated from the date of receipt of the claim Service or the/ Materials or the invoice, whichever is later.

5. <u>Safety Plan</u>. Intentionally Omitted

6. <u>Documents</u>. All documents, including any intellectual property rights thereto, prepared and submitted to the City pursuant to this Agreement shall be the property of the City.

7. <u>Contractor Personnel</u>. Contractor shall provide adequate, experienced personnel, capable of and devoted to the successful performance of the Services under this Agreement. Contractor agrees to assign specific individuals to key positions. If deemed qualified, the Contractor is encouraged to hire City residents to fill vacant positions at all levels. Contractor agrees that, upon commencement of the Services to be performed under this Agreement, key personnel shall not be removed or replaced without prior written notice to the City. If key personnel are not available to perform the Services for a continuous period exceeding thirty (30) calendar days, or are expected to devote substantially less effort to the Services than initially anticipated, Contractor shall immediately notify the City of same and shall, subject to the concurrence of the City, replace such personnel with personnel possessing substantially equal ability and qualifications.

8. <u>Inspection; Acceptance</u>. All work and services shall be subject to inspection and acceptance by the City at reasonable times during Contractor's performance. The Contractor shall provide and maintain a self-inspection system that is acceptable to the City.

9. <u>Licenses; Materials</u>. Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state, and local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor. The City has no obligation to provide Contractor, its employees, or subcontractors any business registrations or licenses required to perform the specific services set forth in this Agreement. The City has no obligation to provide tools, equipment or material to Contractor.

10. <u>Performance Warranty</u>. Contractor warrants that the Services rendered will conform to the requirements of this Agreement and with the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the same profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.

11. <u>Indemnification</u>. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City and each council member, officer, director, employee or agent thereof (the City and any such person being herein called an "Indemnified Party"), for, from and against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, fines, penalties, judgments, costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and the costs of appellate proceedings) to which any such Indemnified Party may become subject, under any theory of liability whatsoever (collectively "Claims"), insofar as such Claims (or actions in respect thereof) relate to, arise out of, or are caused by or based upon the intentional, reckless, or negligent acts, misconduct, errors, directives, mistakes or omissions, in connection with the work or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, or any tier of subcontractor or person for which Contractor may be legally liable in the performance of this Agreement.

The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth below will in no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this Section.

12. Insurance.

12.1 <u>General</u>.

A. <u>Insurer Qualifications</u>. Without limiting any obligations or liabilities of Contractor, Contractor shall purchase and maintain, at its own expense, hereinafter stipulated minimum insurance with insurance

companies authorized to do business in the State of Missouri, with an AM Best, Inc. rating of A or above with policies and forms satisfactory to the City. Failure to maintain insurance as specified herein may result in termination of this Agreement at the City's option.

B. <u>No Representation of Coverage Adequacy</u>. The City reserves the right to review any and all of the insurance policies and/or endorsements cited in this Agreement, but has no obligation to do so. Failure to demand such evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements set forth in this Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency shall not relieve Contractor from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the performance of this Agreement.

C. <u>Additional Insured</u>. All insurance coverage and self-insured retention or deductible portions, except Workers' Compensation insurance and Professional Liability insurance, if applicable, shall name and endorse, to the fullest extent permitted by law for claims arising out of the performance of this Agreement, the City, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees as Additional Insured as specified under the respective coverage sections of this Agreement.

D. <u>Coverage Term</u>. All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect until all work or services required to be performed under the terms of this Agreement are satisfactorily performed, completed and formally accepted by the City, unless specified otherwise in this Agreement. E. <u>Primary Insurance</u>. Contractor's insurance shall be, or be endorsed to indicate, its primary, non-contributory insurance with respect to performance of this Agreement and in the protection of the City as an Additional Insured. Such coverage shall be at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13.

F. <u>Claims Made</u>. In the event any insurance policies required by this Agreement are written on a "claims made" basis, coverage shall extend, either by keeping coverage in force or purchasing an extended reporting option, for six (6) years past completion and acceptance of the services. Such continuing coverage shall be evidenced by submission of annual Certificates of Insurance citing applicable coverage is in force and contains the provisions as required herein for the six-year period.

G. <u>Waiver</u>. All policies, except for Professional Liability, including Workers' Compensation insurance, shall contain a waiver of rights of recovery (subrogation) against the City, its agents, representatives, officials, officers and employees for any claims arising out of the work or services of Contractor. Contractor shall arrange to have such subrogation waivers incorporated into each policy via formal written endorsement.

H. <u>Policy Deductibles and/or Self-Insured Retentions</u>. The policies set forth in these requirements may provide coverage that contains deductibles or self-insured retention amounts. Such deductibles or self-insured retention shall not be applicable with respect to the policy limits provided to the City. Contractor shall be solely responsible for any such deductible or self-insured retention amount.

I. <u>Automatic Escalator</u>. The limits of liability for each policy coverage amount stated above shall be automatically adjusted upward as necessary to remain at all times not less than the maximum amount of liability set forth in Chapter 537.610 RSMo. applicable to political subdivisions pursuant to 537.600; provided that nothing herein or in any such policy shall be deemed to waive the City's sovereign immunity. The statutory waiver of sovereign immunity for 2020 is \$2,905,664 for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence.

J. <u>Use of Subcontractors</u>. If any work under this Agreement is subcontracted in any way, Contractor shall either cover all sub-contractors in the Contractor's liability insurance policy or execute written agreements with its subcontractors containing the indemnification provisions set forth in this Section and insurance requirements set forth herein protecting the City and Contractor. Contractor shall be responsible for executing any agreements with its subcontractors and obtaining certificates of insurance verifying the insurance requirements.

K. <u>Notice of Claim</u>. Contractor shall upon receipt of notice of any claim in connection with this Agreement promptly notify the City, providing full details thereof, including an estimate of the amount of loss or liability. Contractor shall also promptly notify the City of any reduction in limits of protection

afforded under any policy listed in the certificate(s) of insurance in an amount such that the policy aggregate becomes less than the current statutory waiver of sovereign immunity, regardless of whether such impairment is a result of this Agreement. A breach of this provision is a material breach of the Agreement.

L. <u>Evidence of Insurance</u>. Prior to commencing any work or services under this Agreement, Contractor will provide the City with suitable evidence of insurance in the form of certificates of insurance and a copy of the declaration page(s) of the insurance policies as required by this Agreement, issued by Contractor's insurance insurer(s) as evidence that policies are placed with acceptable insurers as specified herein and provide the required coverages, conditions and limits of coverage specified in this Agreement and that such coverage and provisions are in full force and effect. The City may reasonably rely upon the certificates of insurance and declaration page(s) of the insurance policies as evidence of coverage but such acceptance and reliance shall not waive or alter in any way the insurance requirements or obligations of this Agreement.

If any of the policies required by this Agreement expire during the life of this Agreement, Contractor shall forward renewal certificates and declaration page(s) to the City thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date. All certificates of insurance and declarations required by this Agreement shall be identified by referencing number and title of this Agreement. Additionally, certificates of insurance and declaration page(s) of the insurance policies submitted without a reference to this Agreement, as applicable, will be subject to rejection and may be returned or discarded. <u>Certificates of insurance and declaration page(s) shall specifically include the following provisions</u>:

- (1) The City, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees are Additional Insureds as follows:
  - (a) Commercial General Liability Under Insurance Services Office, Inc., ("ISO") Form CG 20 10 03 97 and CG 20 37 07 04, or their equivalents.
  - (b) Auto Liability Under ISO Form CA 20 48 or equivalent.
  - (c) Excess Liability Follow Form to underlying insurance.
- (2) Contractor's insurance shall be primary, non-contributory insurance with respect to performance of the Agreement.
- (3) All policies, except for Professional Liability, including Workers' Compensation, waive rights of recovery (subrogation) against City, its agents, representatives, officers, officials and employees for any claims arising out of work or services performed by Contractor under this Agreement.
- (4) ACORD certificate of insurance form 25 (2014/01) is preferred. If ACORD certificate of insurance form 25 (2001/08) is used, the phrases in the cancellation provision "endeavor to" and "but failure to mail such notice shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the company, its agents or representatives" shall be deleted. Certificate forms other than ACORD form shall have similar restrictive language deleted.

All Certificates of Insurance shall name the City of Lee's Summit as the certificate holder and send the certificate and any endorsements to:

City of Lee's Summit Attn: Procurement and Contract Services 220 S.E. Green Street Lee's Summit, MO 64063 -2358

M. <u>Endorsements</u>. Contractor shall provide the City with the necessary endorsements to ensure City is provided the insurance coverage set forth in this Subsection.

# 12.2 <u>Required Insurance Coverage</u>.

A. Commercial General Liability. Contractor shall maintain "occurrence" form Commercial General Liability insurance with an unimpaired limit of not less than \$1,000,000 for each occurrence, \$2,000,000 Products and Completed Operations Annual Aggregate and a \$2,000,000 General Aggregate Limit. The policy shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, productscompleted operations, bodily injury, personal injury and advertising injury. Coverage under the policy will be at least as broad as ISO policy form CG 00 01 93 or equivalent thereof, including but not limited to, separation of insured's clause. To the fullest extent allowed by law, for claims arising out of the performance of this Agreement, the City, its agents, representatives, officers, officials and employees shall be endorsed as an Additional Insured under ISO, Commercial General Liability Additional Insured Endorsement forms CG 20 10 03 97 and CG 20 37 07 04, or their equivalents, which shall read "Who is an Insured (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability arising out of "your work" for that insured by or for you." The policy shall contain an endorsement waiving rights of recovery (subrogation) against the City, its agents, representatives, officials, officers and employees. If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this subsection, such Excess insurance shall be "follow form" equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance.

B. <u>Vehicle Liability</u>. Contractor shall maintain Business Automobile Liability insurance with an unimpaired limit of \$1,000,000 each occurrence on Contractor's owned, hired and non-owned vehicles assigned to or used in the performance of the Contractor's work or services under this Agreement. Coverage will be at least as broad as ISO coverage code "1" "any auto" policy form CA 00 01 12 93 or equivalent thereof and contain. This coverage may also be provided on the Contractors Pollution Liability policy. To the fullest extent allowed by law, for claims arising out of the performance of this Agreement, the City, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees shall be endorsed as an Additional Insured under ISO Business Auto policy Designated Insured Endorsement form CA 20 48 or equivalent. The policy shall contain an endorsement waiving rights of recovery (subrogation) against the City, its agents, representatives, officials, officers and employees. If any Excess insurance is utilized to fulfill the requirements of this subsection, such Excess insurance shall be "follow form" equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance.

C. <u>Workers' Compensation Insurance</u>. Contractor shall maintain Workers' Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state statutes having jurisdiction over Contractor's employees engaged in the performance of work or services under this Agreement and shall also maintain Employers Liability Insurance with an unimpaired limit of not less than \$500,000 for each accident, \$500,000 disease for each employee and \$1,000,000 disease policy limit. The policy shall contain an endorsement waiving rights of recovery (subrogation) against the City, its agents, representatives, officials, officers and employees.

D. <u>Professional Liability</u>. If this Agreement is the subject of any professional services or work, or if the Contractor engages in any professional services or work in any way related to performing the work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall maintain Professional Liability insurance covering negligent errors and omissions arising out of the Services performed by the Contractor, or anyone employed by the Contractor, or anyone for whose negligent acts, mistakes, errors and omissions the Contractor is legally liable, with an liability insurance limit of \$2,000,000 each claim and \$2,000,000 annual aggregate.

The Policy shall include, or be endorsed to include, property damage liability coverage for damage to, alteration of, loss of, or destruction of electronic data and/or information "property" of the City in the care, custody, or control of Contractor.

12.3 <u>Cancellation and Expiration Notice</u>. Insurance required herein shall not expire, be canceled, or be materially changed without thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the City.

# 13. <u>Termination; Cancellation</u>.

13.1 <u>For City's Convenience</u>. This Agreement is for the convenience of the City and, as such, may be terminated without cause after receipt by Contractor of written notice by the City. The Notice of Termination shall specify the effective date of termination, which shall be not less than five (5) calendar days from the date the notice is personally delivered or ten (10) days from the date the Notice of Termination is sent by another method. Upon termination for convenience, Contractor shall be paid, for all undisputed materials or services that were delivered prior to the termination date.

13.2 <u>For Cause</u>. If either Party fails to perform any obligation pursuant to this Agreement and such Party fails to cure its nonperformance within thirty (30) calendar days after notice of nonperformance is given by the nondefaulting Party, such Party will be in default. In the event of such default, the non-defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause and will have all remedies that are available to it at law or in equity including, without limitation, the remedy of specific performance. If the nature of the defaulting Party's nonperformance is such that it cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) calendar days, then the defaulting Party will have such additional periods of time as may be reasonably necessary under the circumstances, provided the defaulting Party immediately (1) provides written notice to the non-defaulting Party and (2) commences to cure its nonperformance and thereafter diligently continues to completion the cure of its nonperformance. In no event shall any such cure period exceed ninety (90) calendar days. In the event of such termination for cause, payment shall be made by the City to the Contractor for the undisputed portion of its fee due as of the termination date.

The City shall have the right to declare the Contractor in default for the following reasons, which set forth examples, but are not the only reasons the Contractor may declared in default:

A. Upon a breach by the Contractor of a material term or condition of this Contract, including unsatisfactory performance of the services;

B. Upon insolvency or the commencement of any proceeding by or against the Contractor, either voluntarily or involuntarily, under the Bankruptcy Code or relating to the insolvency, receivership, liquidation, or composition of the Contractor for the benefit of creditors;

C. If the Contractor refuses or fails to proceed with the services under the Contract when and as directed by the City;

D. If the Contractor or any of its officers, directors, partners, five percent (5%) or greater shareholders, principals, or other employee or person substantially involved in its activities are indicted or convicted after execution of the Contract under any state or federal law of any of the following:

1. a criminal offense incident to obtaining or attempting to obtain or performing a public or private contract;

2. fraud, embezzlement, theft, bribery, forgery, falsification, or destruction of records, or receiving stolen property;

3. a criminal violation of any state or federal antitrust law;

4. violation of the Racketeer Influence and Corrupt Organization Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1961 et seq., or the Mail Fraud Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1341 et seq., for acts in connection with the submission of bids or proposals for a public or private contract;

5. conspiracy to commit any act or omission that would constitute grounds for conviction or liability under any statute described in subparagraph (d) above; or

6. an offense indicating a lack of business integrity that seriously and directly affects responsibility as a City contractor.

E. If the Contractor or any of its officers, directors, partners, five percent (5%) or greater shareholders, principals, or other employee or person substantially involved in its activities are subject to a judgment of civil liability under any state or federal antitrust law for acts or omissions in connection with the submission of bids or proposals for a public or private contract; or

F. If the Contractor or any of its officers, directors, partners, five percent (5%) or greater shareholders, principals, or other employee or person substantially involved in its activities makes or causes to be made any false, deceptive, or fraudulent material statement, or fail to make a required material statement in any bid, proposal, or application for City or other government work.

13.3 <u>Gratuities</u>. The City may, by written notice to the Contractor, cancel this Agreement if it is found by the City that gratuities, in the form of economic opportunity, future employment, entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of the Contractor to any officer, agent or employee of the City for the purpose of securing this Agreement. In the event this Agreement is canceled by the City pursuant to this provision, the City shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover and withhold from the Contractor an amount equal to 150% of the gratuity.

Agreement Subject to Appropriation. The City is obligated only to pay its obligations set forth in the 13.4 Agreement as may lawfully be made from funds appropriated and budgeted for that purpose during the City's then current fiscal year. The City's obligations under this Agreement are current expenses subject to the "budget law" and the unfettered legislative discretion of the City concerning budgeted purposes and appropriation of funds. Should the City elect not to appropriate and budget funds to pay its Agreement obligations, this Agreement shall be deemed terminated at the end of the then-current fiscal year term for which such funds were appropriated and budgeted for such purpose and the City shall be relieved of any subsequent obligation under this Agreement. The Parties agree that the City has no obligation or duty of good faith to budget or appropriate the payment of the City's obligations set forth in this Agreement in any budget in any fiscal year other than the fiscal year in which the Agreement is executed and delivered. The City shall be the sole judge and authority in determining the availability of funds for its obligations under this Agreement. The City shall keep Contractor informed as to the availability of funds for this Agreement. The obligation of the City to make any payment pursuant to this Agreement is not a general obligation or indebtedness of the City. Contractor hereby waives any and all rights to bring any claim against the City from or relating in any way to the City's termination of this Agreement pursuant to this section.

13.5 <u>Conflict of Interest</u>. No salaried officer or employee of the City and no member of the City Council shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement, and any violation of this provision renders the Agreement void. The parties shall comply with all federal conflict of interest statutes and regulations, and all applicable provisions of §§ 105.450, *et. seq.* RSMo. Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services to be performed under this Agreement. Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement no person having such interest shall be employed.

# 14. Miscellaneous.

14.1 <u>Independent Contractor</u>. It is clearly understood that each party will act in its individual capacity and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venturer, or associate of the other. An employee or agent of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employee or agent of the other for any purpose whatsoever. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that all services provided under this Agreement are being provided as an independent contractor, not as an employee or agent of the City. Contractor, its employees and subcontractors are not entitled to workers' compensation benefits from the City. The City does not have the authority to supervise or control the actual work of Contractor, its employees or subcontractors. Contractor is neither prohibited from entering into other contracts nor prohibited from practicing its profession elsewhere. City and Contractor do not intend to nor will they combine business operations under this Agreement.

14.2 <u>Applicable Law; Venue</u>. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Missouri, and a suit pertaining to this Agreement may be brought only in courts in eastern Jackson County, Missouri. The Parties expressly and irrevocably consent to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of such courts and expressly waive the right to transfer or remove any such action.

14.3 <u>Laws and Regulations</u>. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances applicable to its performance under this Agreement. The Contractor shall include similar requirements of all subcontractors in Agreements entered for performance of Contractor's obligations under this Agreement. Contractor shall keep fully informed and shall at all times during the performance of its duties under this Agreement ensure that it and any person for whom the Contractor is responsible abides by, and remains in compliance with, all rules, regulations, ordinances, statutes or laws affecting the Services, including, but not limited to, the following: (1) existing and future City and County ordinances and regulations; (2) existing and future State and Federal laws and regulations; and (C) existing and future Occupational Safety and Health Administration standards.

14.4 <u>Amendments</u>. This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the City and the Contractor.

14.5 <u>Provisions Required by Law</u>. Each and every provision of law and any clause required by law to be in the Agreement will be read and enforced as though it were included herein and, if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either Party, the Agreement will promptly be physically amended to make such insertion or correction.

14.6 <u>Severability</u>. The provisions of this Agreement are severable to the extent that any provision or application held to be invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect any other provision or application of the Agreement which may remain in effect without the invalid provision or application.

14.7 <u>Entire Agreement; Interpretation; Parol Evidence</u>. This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to its subject matter, and all previous agreements, whether oral or written, entered into prior to this Agreement are hereby revoked and superseded by this Agreement. No representations, warranties, inducements or oral agreements have been made by any of the Parties except as expressly set forth herein, or in any other contemporaneous written agreement executed for the purposes of carrying out the provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to its plain meaning, and no presumption shall be deemed to apply in favor of, or against the Party drafting the Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that each has had the opportunity to seek and utilize legal counsel in the drafting of, review of, and entry into this Agreement.

14.8 <u>Assignment; Delegation</u>. No right or interest in this Agreement shall be assigned or delegated by Contractor without prior, written permission of the City, signed by the City Administrator. Any attempted assignment or delegation by Contractor in violation of this provision shall be a breach of this Agreement by Contractor. The requirements of this Agreement are binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of both Parties.

14.9 <u>Subcontracts</u>. No subcontract shall be entered into by the Contractor with any other Party to furnish any of the material or services specified herein without the prior written and signed approval of the City. The Contractor is responsible for performance under this Agreement whether or not subcontractors are used. Failure to pay subcontractors in a timely manner pursuant to any subcontract shall be a material breach of this Agreement by Contractor.

14.10 <u>Rights and Remedies</u>. No provision in this Agreement shall be construed, expressly or by implication, as waiver by the City of any existing or future right and/or remedy available by law in the event of any claim of

default or breach of this Agreement. The failure of the City to insist upon the strict performance of any term or condition of this Agreement or to exercise or delay the exercise of any right or remedy provided in this Agreement, or by law, or the City's acceptance of and payment for services, shall not release the Contractor from any responsibilities or obligations imposed by this Agreement or by law, and shall not be deemed a waiver of any right of the City to insist upon the strict performance of this Agreement.

14.11 <u>Offset for Damages</u>. In addition to all other remedies at law or equity, the City may offset from any money due to the Contractor any amounts Contractor owes to the City for damages resulting from breach or deficiencies in performance or breach of any obligation under this Agreement.

14.12 <u>Notices and Requests</u>. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if (1) delivered to the Party at the address set forth below, (2) deposited in the U.S. Mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, to the address set forth below or (3) given to a recognized and reputable overnight delivery service, to the address set forth below:

If to the City:	City of Lee's Summit
	220 SE Green St
	Lee's Summit, Missouri 64063
	Attn: Procurement and Contract Services

With copy to: City of Lee's Summit 220 SE Green St Lee's Summit, Missouri 64063 Attn: City Attorney's Office

If to Contractor: [INSERT ADDRESS]

Attn:

or at such other address, and to the attention of such other person or officer, as any Party may designate in writing by notice duly given pursuant to this subsection. Notices shall be deemed received (1) when delivered to the Party, (2) three (3) business days after being placed in the U.S. Mail, properly addressed, with sufficient postage, or (3) the following business day after being given to a recognized overnight delivery service, with the person giving the notice paying all required charges and instructing the delivery service to deliver on the following business day. If a copy of a notice is also given to a Party's counsel or other recipient, the provisions above governing the date on which a notice is deemed to have been received by a Party shall mean and refer to the date on which the Party, and not its counsel or other recipient to which a copy of the notice may be sent, is deemed to have received the notice.

14.13 <u>Force Majeure</u>. The Parties shall be excused from performance during the time and to the extent that they are prevented from obtaining, delivering, or performing for reasons beyond the Parties' reasonable control, including without limitation, by act of God, public health emergency, natural disaster fire, strike, loss or shortage of transportation facilities, lock-out, commandeering of materials, products, plants or facilities by the government, and any other events or circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the party, when satisfactory evidence is presented to the City, provided that it is satisfactorily established that the non-performance is not due to the fault or neglect of the Party not performing.

14.14 <u>Confidentiality of Records</u>. The Contractor shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are acceptable to the City for the purpose of ensuring that information contained in its records or obtained from the City or from others in carrying out its obligations under this Agreement shall not be used or disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or employees, except as required to perform Contractor's duties under this Agreement. Persons requesting such information should be referred to the City. Contractor also agrees that any information

pertaining to individual persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or officers of Contractor as needed for the performance of duties under this Agreement. Contractor shall ensure its subcontractors are aware of and comply with this provision.

#### 14.15 Information Technology

A. <u>Limited Access</u>. If necessary for the fulfillment of the Contract, the City may provide the Contractor with non-exclusive, limited access to the City's information technology infrastructure. The Contractor understands and agrees to abide by all the City policies, standards, regulations and restrictions regarding access and usage of the City's information technology infrastructure. The Contractor shall enforce all such policies, standards, regulations and restrictions with all the Contractor's employees, agents or any tier of subcontractor granted access in the performance of this Contract, and shall be granted and authorize only such access as may be necessary for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of the Contract.

B. <u>Data Confidentiality</u>: All data, regardless of form, including originals, images and reproductions, prepared by, obtained by or transmitted to the Contractor in connection with this Contract is confidential, proprietary information owned by the City. Except as specifically provided in this Contract, the Contractor shall not shall not, without the prior, written consent of the City Manager or authorized designee, (A) disclose data generated in the performance of the Services to any third party or (B) use City data and information.

C. <u>Data Security</u>. Personal identifying information, financial account information, or restricted City information, whether electronic format or hard copy, must be secured and protected at all times to avoid unauthorized access. At a minimum, the Contractor must encrypt and/or password-protect electronic files. This includes data saved to laptop computers, computerized devices or removable storage devices. When personal identifying information, financial account information, or restricted City information, regardless of its format, is no longer necessary or this Contract is terminated (whichever occurs first), the information must be redacted or destroyed through appropriate and secure methods that ensure the information cannot be viewed, accessed or reconstructed. Before the information to the City in a format specified by the City.

D. <u>Compromised Security</u>. In the event that data collected or obtained by the Contractor in connection with this Contract is believed to have been compromised, the Contractor shall notify the City Manager, or authorized designee, immediately. The Contractor agrees to reimburse the City for any costs incurred by the City to investigate potential breaches of this data and, where applicable, the cost of notifying individuals who may be impacted by the breach.

E. <u>Permitted Access</u>. The Contractor's employees, agents and subcontractors must receive prior, written approval from the City before being granted access to the City's information technology infrastructure and data and the City, in its sole determination, shall determine accessibility and limitations thereto. The Contractor agrees that the requirements of this Section shall be incorporated into all subcontractor/subcontractor contracts entered into by the Contractor. It is further agreed that a violation of this Section shall be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. A violation of this Section may result in immediate termination of this Contract without notice.

F. <u>Cessation of Operation or Support</u>. If Contractor ceases to operate, ends support of, or otherwise divests its interest in the software and materials for which it is contracted by the City and does not assign its service obligations according to these Terms and Conditions, the Contractor shall provide the City a copy of current source code. The City agrees it shall only use the source code to support its internal use of the software.

G. <u>Disengagement</u>. In the event the Contract is terminated by either party, Contractor agrees to confer back to the City all of its data, in usable and normalized format, within 30 calendar days of notice of termination. There shall be no charge for the return of City data to the City.

H. <u>Survival</u>. The obligations of the Contractor under this Section shall survive the termination of this Contract.

14.16 <u>Work Authorization/E-verify</u>. Pursuant § 285.530, RSMo., if Agreement exceeds five thousand dollars (\$5,000.00), Contractor warrants and affirms to the City that (i) Contractor is enrolled and participates in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and (ii) Contractor does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services.

Contractor shall swear to and sign an affidavit declaring such affirmation, and provide the City with supporting documentation of its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with this Agreement. The required documentation must be from the federal work authorization program provider (e.g. the electronic signature page from the E-Verify program's Memorandum of Understanding); a letter from Contractor reciting compliance is not sufficient.

14.17 <u>Conflicting Terms</u>. In the event of any inconsistency, conflict or ambiguity among the terms of this Agreement, the Scope of Work, any City-approved Purchase Order or Work Order, the Fee Proposal, the RFP and the Contractor's Proposal, the documents shall govern in the order listed herein.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, unauthorized exceptions, conditions, limitations or provisions in conflict with the terms of this Agreement (collectively, the "Unauthorized Conditions"), other than the City's project-specific quantities, configurations or delivery dates, are expressly declared void and shall be of no force and effect. Acceptance by the City of any invoice containing any such Unauthorized Conditions or failure to demand full compliance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract shall not alter or relieve Contractor from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its requirements and obligations in the performance of this Agreement. If the Agreement is renewed pursuant to Section 1 above and such renewal includes any conflicting terms, other than price, those terms will be null and void unless amended as set forth in this Agreement.

14.18 <u>Non-Exclusive Agreement</u>. This Agreement is entered into with the understanding and agreement that it is for the sole convenience of the City. The City reserves the right to obtain like goods and services from another source when necessary.

14.19 <u>Prevailing Wages</u>. Pursuant to RSMo. § 290.230.5, if this Agreement exceeds seventy-five thousand dollars (\$75,000.00) and involves construction of public works, Contractor shall all its workers the prevailing hourly rate of wages for work of a similar character in Lee's Summit. If there is a dispute whether this Agreement is subject to prevailing wages as required by RSMo. § 290.210, et. seq., the City's determination shall control.

14.20 <u>Cooperative Purchasing</u>. Contractor, by submitting a proposal to the RFP, acknowledges that other specific eligible political subdivisions and nonprofit institutions ("Eligible Procurement Unit(s)") are permitted to utilize procurement agreements developed by the City, at their discretion and with the agreement of the awarded Contractor. Contractor may, at its sole discretion, accept orders from Eligible Procurement Unit(s) for the purchase of the materials and/or services at the prices and under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, in such quantities and configurations as may be agreed upon between the Parties. All cooperative procurements under this Agreement shall be transacted solely between the requesting Eligible Procurement Unit. The exercise of any rights, responsibilities or remedies by the Eligible Procurement Unit shall be the exclusive obligation of such unit. The City assumes no responsibility for payment, performance or any liability or obligation associated with any cooperative procurement under this Agreement. The City shall not be responsible for any disputes arising out of transactions made by others.

14.21 <u>Time of the Essence</u>. Time is of the essence in this Agreement. Unless otherwise specifically provided, any consent to delay in Contractor's performance of its obligation is applicable only to the particular transaction to which it relates, and is not applicable to any other obligation or transaction.

14.22 <u>Signatory Authority</u>. Each person signing this Agreement represents that such person has the requisite authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the entity the person represents and that all necessary formalities have been met.

14.23 <u>E-Signature and Counterparts</u>. The Parties agree that this Contract may be signed in two or more counterparts and/or signed electronically, and all such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same contract; such signatures shall bind the signing party in the same manner as if a handwritten signature had been delivered.

14.24 <u>Anti-Discrimination Against Israel Act</u>. If this Contract has a total potential value of \$100,000 or more and Contractor has 10 or more employees, the following applies. Pursuant to Section 34.600, RSMo and to the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor certifies that Contractor is not engaged in a boycott of Israel as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement to not engage in a boycott of Israel as defined in Section 34.600, RSMo

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES]

RFP NO. 2021-008 LEGISLATIVE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL SERVICES

[INSERT CONTRACTOR'S NAME]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_ ("Effective Date").

**CITY OF LEE'S SUMMIT** 

## 

EXHIBIT A TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LEE'S SUMMIT AND

#### [Contractor's Proposal]

See following pages.

EXHIBIT B TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LEE'S SUMMIT AND

[Scope of Work]

See following page(s).



#### EXHIBIT C TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LEE'S SUMMIT AND

[Fee Proposal]

See following page(s).

#### **Packet Information**

#### File #: 2020-3630, Version: 1

#### Legislative Priorities

Attached are the 2019 and 2020 Legislative Priorities for your reference as we begin discussions on August 24, 2020 of our Legislative Priorities for the 2021 Legislative Session. Also attached is the most recent 2020 priorities in a Word format with space provided for your suggested changes.

UPDATE for 9-21-20 meeting: The Committee requested information from the lobbyist and clean copies of the legislative priorities document from last year. Those have been provided to the Committee members.



### MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

**District 1** Councilmembers



Mayor Bill Baird wbaird@cityofLS.net 816.969.1010



Rob Binnev **Diane Forte** rob.binney@cityofLS.net diane.forte@cityofLS.net 816.289.1929 816.537.8958

District 3 Councilmembers



Beto Lopez Phyllis Q. Edson 816.533.5059 816.352.6885



816.309.6364



trish.carlyle@cityofLS.net craig.faith@cityofLS.net 816.204.4763

District 4 Councilmembers

District 2

Councilmembers



Fred DeMoro Bob Johnson beto.lopez@cityofLS.net phyllis.edson@cityofLS.net bob.johnson@cityofLS.net fred.demoro@cityofLS.net 816.225.6126 816.419.1404

For questions regarding our Legislative Priorities, please contact City Attorney Brian Head. 816.969.1415 | brian.head@cityofLS.net

220 SE Green Street | Lee's Summit, MO 64063 | cityofLS.net

# LEGISLATIVE INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROGRAM

The fundamental goal of all City of Lee's Summit legislative and intergovernmental activities is to produce positive outcomes for the citizens of Lee's Summit as a whole. Numerous proposals in the General Assembly or by State agencies have the potential to seriously impact the ability of the City to carry out its overall mission. By taking a proactive role in monitoring and commenting on proposals, we are working to ensure that the citizens of the City of Lee's Summit can continue to enjoy the quality of life they have come to expect and deserve.

# LEE'S SUMMIT

# Lee's Summit General Position

As a general policy, the City of Lee's Summit seeks to preserve its current authority to govern the city, its citizens, and its property. The City may oppose any legislation viewed as detrimental to the City's strategic goals; or that is contrary to the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens; or that mandates increased costs or loss of revenues; or that would diminish the fundamental authority of the City.

### Partnerships

The City will form strategic partnerships with cities, political subdivisions (counties and school districts) and private sector entities that share common goals with the City of Lee's Summit. Additionally, the City will work in coordination with organizations such as the Missouri Municipal League, Mid-America Regional Council, and Lee's Summit Chamber of Commerce when their adopted positions are in line with the legislative objectives and goals of the City. The formation of strategic partnerships and coordinated efforts is intended to provide the City with a stronger presence in the legislative and administrative process.

#### **PRIORITIES TO WATCH**

As a general policy, the City of Lee's Summit seeks to preserve its current authority to govern the city, its citizens, and its property. The City may oppose any legislation viewed as detrimental to the City's strategic goals; or that is contrary to the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens; or that mandates increased costs or loss of revenues; or that would diminish the fundamental authority of the City.

#### **GENERAL SUPPORT**

The City will support initiatives that preserve municipal authority or that otherwise have a positive impact on municipal operations, including but not limited to legislation that would:

- 1. Maintain municipal authority,
- 2. Eliminate or reduce the impact of unfunded mandates.
- 3. Preserve local control over municipal revenue streams,
- 4. Increases the ability of Missouri cities to attract quality businesses and jobs.

#### **GENERAL OPPOSITION**

The City specifically opposes initiatives that undermine the local control of cities such as:

- 1. Preemption of local laws,
- 2. Unfunded mandates.
- 3. Limitations on the ability of cities to manage local revenue sources or to issue debt,
- 4. Restrictions on local right of way and land use authority.
- Diversion of municipal revenue streams to 5. other entities.
- 6. Elimination of proven economic development tools available to local governments.

#### LEE'S SUMMIT GENERAL POSITION

#### 1. Preservation of Local Self-Governance

- a. Supports inclusion of an opt-in provision for local governments on any sales tax exemption passed by the State. Opposes any sales tax exemption passed by the state that mandates a local sales tax exemption.
- b. Supports legislation streamlining sales tax and use tax collection under recent U.S. Supreme Court decisions and preservation of local control of revenues.
- c. Opposes legislation that will result in an unnecessary loss of local control regarding the placement or permitting of communications or other infrastructure.
- d. Supports reimbursement to cities for direct costs of compliance with state laws, polices, and regulations and standards that impose additional costs and responsibilities on local governments, pursuant to the Missouri Constitution.
- e. Supports enabling legislation allowing airports to remove abandoned aircraft from airport property.
- f. Supports legislation maintaining municipal authority related to residential short term rentals.

#### 2. Economic Development Programs

- a. Supports the continuation of proven economic development tools used to stimulate employment and leverage private investments, including but not limited to, the Missouri Technology Corporation and high-performing tax credit programs, such as the historic tax credit program.
- c. Supports open records and transparency regarding video and audio recordings collected by public safety agencies, but asks the General Assembly and Governor to provide for the b. Supports continuation of workforce development efforts through community partners, Summit protection of individual privacy and integrity of Technology Academy and the Missouri Innovation open investigations when considering any related legislation. Campus.
- c. Encourages the addition of State tax credits and other incentives for projects that create and retain quality jobs or for capital investments in new or expanding businesses. We specifically support reasonable incentives for:
  - Investments in next generation businesses that focus on innovation in industries like healthcare, life sciences, and advanced technologies.
- d. We oppose efforts to reduce the effectiveness of such programs, including proposals to subject them to the annual appropriations process.
- e. Supports continued investment in the arts, tourism, and recreation as pro-economic development tools.
- f. Opposes legislation granting control of the air traffic control system to anyone other than the FAA.

#### 3. Public Safety

a. Supports legislation to allow voters to broaden the scope of communication devices where users are levied a fee to support 9-1-1, with revisions to state 9-1-1 statutes to allow for either a county fee or a statewide fee on all communication devices.



Lee's Summit is a premier community in the Kansas City bi-state metro area. Though Lee's Summit, with a population of over 97,000, enjoys many of the attributes of a significant suburb within a major metropolitan area, it still maintains a small town feel with an award winning, historic downtown. Lee's Summit also holds four accreditation statuses in the Police, Fire, Parks & Recreation and Public Works. In combination with great shopping opportunities, outstanding community health facilities, award winning schools and the nationally recognized Missouri Innovation Campus, these are the reasons that Money Magazine voted Lee's Summit one of the 100 Best Places to Live"six times in a row.

including landline, wireless and VOIP devices to support emergency telephone 9-1-1 costs.

b. Opposes the preemption of reasonable, local regulation of vehicles-for-hire.

- d. Supports legislation that gives authority and limits liability of EMS agencies in treating and transporting patients that are unable to give consent and standardizes service protocols for such patients.
- e. Supports legislation authorizing extension of additional funding for ambulance services.

#### 4. Transportation Funding

- a. Encourages legislation that would allocate direct funding for roads and highways within Lee's Summit. We also ask our local representatives support in urging the Missouri Department of Transportation to partner with the City of Lee's Summit to leverage combined resources to fund local projects.
- b. Supports funding to maintain and support passenger rail services in Missouri including AMTRAK's Missouri River Runner Service.
- c. Supports the continued funding of and administration of state aviation grant programs.
- d. Supports funding to provide for the continued development of the Rock Island Trail and Katy Trail.

# 2020 LEGISLATIVE priorities

# LEE'S SUMMIT

### COMMUNITY

Lee's Summit is a premier community in the Kansas City area. With a population of more than 98,000, we enjoy many attributes of a significant city within a major metropolitan area, while still maintaining our small-town charm.

Lee's Summit is often recognized nationally for our great shopping opportunities, outstanding community health facilities, and award-winning parks and schools including the Missouri Innovation Campus. We strive to make educational, social and recreational opportunities available to our residents and businesses in order to pursue their lifelong goals. Our residents are our top priority.

# **MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY**

We believe...

- The best government is closest to the people in local:
  - Land-use decisions.
  - Control of right of ways.
  - Transportation and housing regulations.



- Citizens desire local control of revenue sources.
- Opportunity for revenue should be fair to all.
- Online and brick-and-mortar stores should be taxed equally.
- Support video-streaming legislation that protects municipal revenue.

# **TRANSPORTATION**

#### We support...

- Revising the current revenue models and methods for funding transportation.
- Cost-sharing opportunities for projects in our City.
- The City's efforts to obtain funding for priority projects within the community including local rail, air and roadways.



### **ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT**

- Maintain local authority over economic incentive tools.
- Encourage workforce development partnerships. Provide workforce with higher education, trade and vocational opportunities.
- Support economic development tools to encourage next generation and hightech businesses.
- Explore opportunities for growth in tourism and recreation.

# LEE'S SUMMIT

cityofLS.net 816.969.1010 COMMUNITY

Lee's Summit is a premier community in the Kansas City area. With a population of more than 98,000, we enjoy many attributes of a significant city within a major metropolitan area, while still maintaining our small-town charm.

Lee's Summit is often recognized nationally for our great shopping opportunities, outstanding community health facilities, and award-winning parks and schools - including the Missouri Innovation Campus. We strive educational. social make and recreational to opportunities available residents to our and businesses in order to pursue their lifelong goals. Our residents are our top priority.

MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY We believe...

The best government is closest to the people in local:

- Land-use decisions.
- Control of right of ways.
- Transportation and housing regulations.

REVENUE

- Citizens desire local control of revenue sources.
- Opportunity for revenue should be fair to all.
- Online and brick-and-mortar stores should be taxed equally.
- Support video-streaming legislation that protects municipal revenue.

### TRANSPORTATION

We support...

- Revising the current revenue models and methods for funding transportation.
- Cost-sharing opportunities for projects in our City.
- The City's efforts to obtain funding for priority projects within the community including local rail, air and roadways.

### ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

- Maintain local authority over economic incentive tools.
- Encourage workforce development partnerships. Provide workforce with higher education, trade and vocational opportunities.
- Support economic development tools to encourage next generation and high- tech businesses.
- Explore opportunities for growth in tourism and recreation.